
By policy, minutes are not official until approved by the Board at a future regular meeting. 

Work Session Minutes February 19, 2013 

 

CHEROKEE COUNTY  

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS  

Work Session 

February 19, 2013 

3:00 p.m. 

Cherokee Hall 

MINUTES 
 

The Chairman began at 3:05 p.m. with all Commissioners present.  The Chairman 
mentioned the luncheon for the Council for Quality Growth the previous week.  He read 
various excerpts from a book he received from a luncheon attendee titled “776 Stupidest 
Things Ever Said.” 
 
 

1. District Attorney, Shannon Wallace, to Discuss DA’s Office. 

District Attorney Shannon Wallace reviewed the statutory responsibilities of the 
district attorney's office.  She also touched on several changes she has made since 
taking office on January 1, 2013.  Moving forward, the District Attorney's Office is 
partnering with the Solicitor General to have a prosecutor present at 72-hour 
hearings.  The purpose of this collaboration is to ensure appropriate special 
conditions of bond are requested and to take note of cases coming into the office 
at the earliest opportunity.  Ms. Wallace explained that the Superior Court now has 
three judges hearing criminal cases simultaneously each month and that she has 
divided her staff into trial teams assigned to courtrooms to promote efficiency and 
expedite the movement of cases through the system.   Ms. Wallace described an 
office strategic planning meeting that was held January 4, 2013 with her staff.  
The Chief Superior Court Judge and leadership from local law enforcement 
attended this meeting and discussed changes to the system and potential 
improvements.  During the retreat, the District Attorney's staff voted to add:  
"Collaboration with Partners in the Criminal Justice System" as a goal in their 
mission statement.  In addition to simply working more closely with law 



By policy, minutes are not official until approved by the Board at a future regular meeting. 

Work Session Minutes February 19, 2013 

enforcement, DFCS and other partners, Ms. Wallace hopes to establish a White 
Collar Crime Unit within her office to address identity fraud and other financial 
crimes that often target the elderly.  The Chairman thanked Ms. Wallace for 
speaking with the Board and complimented her on the scope and speed in which 
the changes were implemented. 

 

2. Presentation of Q1 2013 Financials by Janelle Funk. 

Ms. Funk began by stating we are on track for revenue and expenditures.  Our cash in 
all funds increased due to the bulk of our property taxes being collected in December 
and January.  The biggest reason for the increase from last year is the SPLOST funds.  
In 2012, we had higher revenues than budgeted.  We are now budgeting more revenues 
and lower expenditures.  We have no unexplained differences.  However, we need a 
long-term solution versus relying on non-repeatable inflows to fund our cash 
requirements.  We are also not in compliance with our financial policy dictating 10% of 
cash reserves.  She stated that one of our biggest issues is the continuing problems with 
the third party billing company for EMS, Intermedix.  The deadline for RFP submissions 
for EMS Billing was Friday, February 15th.  There were 13 submissions.  The goal is to 
present a new third party billing company sometime in March.  We have spent 
approximately 20% of our budget which is where we should be.  Ms. Funk mentioned 
that FY2014 Budget Process will start with a $4M gap in trying to keep it exactly equal to 
FY2013.  Also, we budgeted 50% of the RRDA debt to be paid by the County in FY2013. 
If no operator is replaced, the County will need to cover 100% of the cost.  Ms. Funk 
gave an outlook for FY2014.  Commissioner Johnston commented that the $4M gap if 
translated into dollar for dollar tax increase, would be just a little over half a mil impact 
if we can’t find that somewhere else. 

Chairman Ahrens asked Mr. Cooper, for the sake of the new Commissioners, to explain 
the Jarrard and Davis expense report regarding cap and non-cap.  Mr. Cooper explained 
the non-cap includes copying costs for any lawsuit filed against the County or that we 
file against anyone that’s not covered by insurance.  The cap is set at $400,000 for a 
12-month period.  Broken down, it’s $150 an hour for their legal costs; $75 an hour for 
paralegal; they provide a $50,000 credit for code enforcement; and they charge $100 an 
hour for tax assessor issues for assessment appeals. 

Commissioner Johnston stated that we all need to be working to figure out the $4M gap.  
In years past, we’ve been able to avoid having to increase taxes above the normal 
millage rate.  We may be looking at taking drastic measures.  The Chairman added that 
we may be looking at possible furloughs or a combination of furloughs and a tax 
increase.  A discussion ensued regarding legislation and the possible amendment to 
setting millage rates and timelines. 



By policy, minutes are not official until approved by the Board at a future regular meeting. 

Work Session Minutes February 19, 2013 

The Chairman asked Mr. Chris Hamilton to discuss the annexation notice for the City of 
Holly Springs.  Mr. Hamilton explained the annexation notice was for 3095 Marble 
Quarry Road near the intersection of Sixes Road.  It is currently zoned O&I and the 
request is for general commercial use. The proposed use is for a grocery store and 
complimentary retail use.  The future development map shows it as suburban living.  Mr. 
Hamilton asked to keep in mind that under the statute the Board can object if there is a 
material increase or burden upon the County based upon the proposed change in zoning 
and land use.  Mr. Hamilton stated he is working with Mr. Watkins to research data for a 
possible material increase for the County to form an objection.  They do not yet have 
the data.  Mr. Hamilton suggested that the Board table this request until the next 
meeting.  Commissioner Johnston confirmed the Board couldn’t object this request solely 
based upon aesthetics.  Mr. Hamilton said the statute is clear that there is a hurdle to 
jump in being able to present data to show that one of the three qualifications are met.  
They need more time to explore that.  The Chairman asked when it was zoned OI.  Mr. 
Watkins stated that is what they are researching.  Commissioner Johnston stated he 
thought in the past, the Board could deny a request based on the land use plan.  Mr. 
Hamilton re-read the statute.  Commissioner Gunnin mentioned that Marble Quarry 
Road would be the only source of entry and exit which would place a burden on that 
neighborhood. 

3. Discussion on Sign Ordinance Amendments. 

Mr. Watkins began by stating the County code does not address the electronic sign issue 
in a straightforward manner.  His suggestion would be to draft a code with specific 
language.  Mr. Watkins referred to a copy of Cobb County’s sign ordinance.  He showed 
slides of various types of electronic signs to consider when amending the ordinance.  
Referring to the Cobb County ordinance, Mr. Watkins stated they describe electronic 
signs as those with messages that can be changed at intervals using a computer 
controller, microprocessor, through the use of LED, LCD, or Plasma.  They exclude 
electronic signs from the definition of flashing.  Depending on where the Board stands on 
this issue will depend on language used in the ordinance.  Other things to consider are 
free standings, static versus moving, lighting, residential zones, size of display, light 
levels, and frequency of signs on the road.  Since this is a zoning ordinance, the County 
will have to follow zoning procedures and hold a public hearing prior to adoption of the 
ordinance.  The Chairman asked how this came up.  Mr. Watkins stated there were two 
variance cases that came up.  Commissioner Nelms asked to confirm the ZBA approved 
the variance the in the cases and asked what the decision matrix was on that.  County 
Attorney Paul Frickey responded that the decision to allow the display to change every 
30 seconds was unanimous.  Initially, the ZBA started with every hour and withdrew it 
to make a motion to allow every 30 seconds.  Commissioner Nelms asked Mr. Watkins if 
there are a lot of requests for electronic signs in the County.  Mr. Watkins stated that 
they get quite a bit, about 10% of total requested signs a year.  Commissioner Nelms 
asked the primary complaint from the case.  Mr. Watkins responded it was that if an 



By policy, minutes are not official until approved by the Board at a future regular meeting. 

Work Session Minutes February 19, 2013 

image was held for too long a period, the image would burn into the screen.  They were 
initially told the sign could only change once every 24 hours which the owners of the 
company claimed they did not hear.  Commissioner Poole asked for clarification.  Mr. 
Watkins stated he suggests amending the sign code so we can address these particular 
types of signs as they are and set the parameters for them.  Commissioner Poole spoke 
on behalf of the business owners.  Commissioner Nelms added that he didn’t mind the 
one sign, but would prefer to not allow so many as to skew the landscape or cause 
driving issues due to the brightness of the signs.  Mr. Watkins stated his main issue was 
the size and the need to limit how large the signs can be.  The Chairman asked if there 
were other sign issues.  Mr. Frickey interjected that when considering the amendments 
to take into consideration that this particular case got through the ZBA variance process 
and is appropriate as it is written.  Commissioner Johnston stated there is the written 
ordinance that does not address how often a sign can change.  It just says it can’t flash, 
which can be interpreted to mean by a past attorney that it couldn’t change any more 
than once every 24 hours.  Mr. Frickey stated it would need to be specific in the 
language of the code.  Commissioner Nelms agreed there is some language that needs 
to be amended.  He suggested the Board consider the time frame and how often a sign 
can change regardless of this one issue and the occurrence down the roadways.  Mr. 
Watkins addressed the Chairman’s question regarding other issues.  He stated they have 
a lot, some broad in scope, some specific.  The Chairman mentioned the “human” signs 
and that he receives many complaints about them because they are really distracting 
and really close to the road.  Commissioner Johnston asked whether those were 
restricted at all.  Mr. Watkins responded that he wasn’t sure what that would fall under.  
Commissioner Gunnin also mentioned banners to be specific in the ordinance.  
Commissioner Nelms asked if Mr. Watkins had some language that was complaint driven 
for the Board to review for the sign ordinance as a whole.  Mr. Watkins referred to an 
outline he provided to show some of the issues they have dealt with.  He stated the 
issue with the electronic signs could be completed quickly and presented by the next 
work session for review.  Commissioners Johnston and Nelms requested language that 
included frequency change and distance between signs. 

Discussion of regular agenda items was omitted due to time. 

                      

The Chairman asked if there was anything else.  Hearing none, Commissioner Nelms 
made a motion to adjourn to Executive Session at 5:09 p.m.  Commissioner Poole 
seconded and the motion carried unanimously. 

 

Executive Session to Follow 


